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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members of NES Data Private Limited

Report on the audit of the Ind AS financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of NES Data Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss and statement including other comprehensive income,
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (*Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2025, its profit including its Comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Ind AS on auditing specified under section
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the ind AS financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of
ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Information other than the Ind AS financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directorsis responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Repost LwLeQes notinclude the Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. !
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Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone ind AS financial Statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the Ind AS financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 {5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
. accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7 preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relatec
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The board of directors are also responsiole for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that inctudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also-




Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind ASfinancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based onthe audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the owverall presentation, structure and content of the ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope andtiming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. The statement on matters specified in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020

(“the Order”), issued by the Centrai Government of india in terms of sub-section (1 1) of
section 143 of the Act, is provided in “Annexure-A”, statement on the maite acified
in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.




a)

i

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by the law have been kept by the
Company, in electronic mode on servers physically located in India so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of
Comprehensiveincome, the cash flow statement and the changes in equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31 March
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the existing Directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

With respect toadequacy of the internal controls overfinancial reporting of the Company
and the opersting effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”

In our opinion and the based on the information presented to us, managerial
remuneration has been paid for the year ended 31 March 2025 hence reporting under
section 197 read with schedule V to the act is required.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I.  The Company has no pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and beljef,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Inter




identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:
and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b)
contain any material misstatement

V. Company has not paid any dividend during the year.

vi. During the course of our audit, based on our examination which included test
checks, we observed that the Company has used an accounting software that has
the capability to record an audit trail (edit log) feature and the same have been
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software, except for payroll records for which the audit trajl was not operative
throughout the year.

As provisoto Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 1 1(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

For NIKHIL WARANKAR & CO.,
Chartered Accountant’s
(FRN: 153107W)

jomHEE-

CA Nikhil Waranka
Proprietor

M. No: 198983
Date: 23" May 2025, At Pune.
UDIN: 25198983BMODSD9358




Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of NES Data Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financiat reporting under clause (i) of sub -
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NES Data Private
Limited (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
3nc the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India and the standards on auditing
prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those standards and the guidance note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

Because of the matter described in Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph below, we were not able to
cotainsufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opiniop R ernal
financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company. \,‘“P‘ ""4»9
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Meaning of internal financiat controls over financial reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of IND
ASfinancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (i)
provide reasonable assurance thattransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of IND ASfinancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (i) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the IND AS financial
statements.

inherent Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Disclaimer of Opinion

The Company is in the process of implementing internal control systems and formalising its
policies. As these controls and policies were partially implemented and operational during the
year and as on 31 March 2025, we were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence to provide opinion on Company’s internal financtal controls over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we have considered the disclaimer in forming opinion on effectiveness of internal
financial controls over financial reporting for the year and as on 31 March 2025.

We have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent
_ of audit tests applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company, and the disclaimer
does not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

For NIKHIL WARANKAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN:153107W)

Zf%‘aﬁankar

Proprietor

M. No: 198983
Date: 23th May, 2025 at Pune.
UDIN: 25158983BMODSD9358




Annexure - “A” referred to in our Independent Auditor’s ReportTothe member of NES Data Private Limited
on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reparting a true and fair view on the IndAS
Financial Statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we
report that;

: i)

i)

Fixed Asset Record:

a) (i} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of its property, plant and equipment and its intangible
assets.

(i) The Company does not possess any Intangible Assets: accordingly, this clause is not
applicable.

b} The Company has a programme of physical verification of its fixed assets under which all
fixed assets are verified in a phased manner. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed in such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no immovable
properties held by the Company which are not held in the name of the Company hence
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

d) The Company has notrevalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

e) According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been
Initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder
during the vear.

The company does not have any inventory and no working capital limits from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(ii) of the order are not applicable.

The Company has not provided any advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships during the year. Further, the Company has made investments in,
provided guarantee, security and granted loans to companies during the year, in respect of
which:

The Company has provided loans and guarantees during the year. The Company has not
provided any security or advances in the nature of loan. Relevant details are give
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PEFticuiars ' Loans (Amount__ih
| lakhs)
Aggregate amount during the year ) -
Subsidiaries o - ) -
Others - s 1628.98
Balance ourst@_ciing_aiat_balangg sheet date -
Subsidiaries - L
Others o 1314.20
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit

=
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(d)

(e)

procedures  conducted by us, in our opinion the investment made and the terms and
conditions of the grant of loans and advances in the nature of loans during the year are,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Com pany.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given and in case of
advances in the nature of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no amount is overdue in respect of
loans given and advances in the nature of loan given.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of
loan granted falling due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has granted loans or advances
in the nature of loans either repayable an demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment which are as below:

(Amountin lakhs)

_ )  All Parties | Promoters | Related Parties |
Aggregate amount of
loans/ advances in
nature of loans:
-Repayable on demand 1314.20 0 1314.20
-Repayable within one
|year S _
Percentage of
loans/advances in nature 100% 100%

of loans to total loans




vi)

vii)

viii)

X)

Accordingto the information and explanation givento us, the company has complied with the
provisicns of Sections 185 and 186 of the companies act, 2013 in respect of loans granted,
investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
under the directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, where
applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable,

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of
Ccmpany’s products/ service. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not
applicabte.

a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the our
examination of the records of the company, in our opinien amount deducted / accrued in the
books of the accounts in respect of the undisputed statutory dues inctuding GST, Provident fund,
Income Tax or any other statutory dues have been regularly deposited with appropriate
authorities except for withholding taxes (TDS).

According to the information and explanation given to us, and on the basis of examination of
‘ecords, no undisputed amount payable in respect of GST, Income Tax, Provident Fund, or any
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31% March 2025 for the period of more than six months
Tom the date they become payables.

2} According to the information and explanations given 1o us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanation given to us, company has no transactions, not
recordedin the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not have any loans
or borrowings from any financial institution, banks, government or debenture holders during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3{(ix) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

{a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year, further, based on the records examined by us and
according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised money by way
of term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) of the Order is not applicable,

(b} According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private ptacement of shares or convertible debentures {fully, partially
or optionally convertible) during




Xi) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us, any fraud by the company or any
fraud on the company has not been noticed or reported during the year;

(b} According to the information and explanation given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

(¢} According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle-blower
complaints, received during the year by the company;

xii)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

" xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies
Act 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, asrequired by the applicable standards.

xiv) (&) The provisions of section 138 of companies act, 2013 retating to appointment of Internal
Auditor are not appticable to the company. Accordingly, reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xvi)  According to the infarmation and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that

i) The provision of section 45-A of the Reserve bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report under this
clause is not applicable to the Company.

i} The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration {COR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934.

iii} The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report under this clause is
not applicable to the Company

iv) The company do not have any CICs which are registered with the Reserve Bank of
india as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

xvii}  According to the information and exptanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted we are of opinion that the company has not incurred any cash losses in the
financial year andthe immediately preceding financial year;




xviii) There has beenno resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, reporting under
this clause is not applicable.

xix) On the basis of the financialratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supportingthe assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities fatling due within a period of one year fromthe
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

xx)  Accordingto the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
applicable to the company. The company has duly comptlied with the requirements of
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), and the amount required to be spent has been fully
spent during the year in accordance with the said provisions.

#xi)  The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
ctause under this report.

For NIKHIL WARANKAR & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 153107W)

Jod -t
ikhil Warankar

Proprietor

M. No: 198983
Date: 23" May 2025, At Pune.
UDMN: 25198983BMODSD9358




NES DATA PRIVATE LIMITED

[Formerly known as Natural Enviranment Selytions Private Limited)
[CIN: U63119PN2017PTC242545)

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

Call ameunts |, F lakehs, un{ess o theveiisesf

:; " [Particulars Notes A5 at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
I |Assets
1 |Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 117.91 -
Right-of-use assets 4 454,92 -
Capital work-in-progress 5 9,968.19
Financial assets
Loans 6 939.60 o
Other financial assets 7 401.77 -
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 7.69 -
Qther non-current assets 9 119.59
Total non-current assets 12,009.67 -
2 [Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables o o
Cash and cash equivalents 10 273.35 0.45
Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents 10 5,000.00 -
Other financial assets 7 25,20 -
Cther current assets 5 1,909.70 -
Total current assets 7,208.25 0.45
Total assets }9,217.91 Q.45
N |Equity and liabilities
1 (Equity
Equity share capital 11 1.59 1.00
Dther equity 12 17,187.48 {0.75)
Total equity 17,189.08 0.25
2 |Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Barrowings 13 924,19 “
Lease liabilities 14 379.59 -
Other financial liabilities 15 80,92
Provisions 17 5.02 -
Totai Non-current liabilities 1,390.72 -
3 (Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings @ =
Lease liabilities 14 75.42 -
Trade payables
-Total autstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises 245.17 -
-Total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro, small and medium 16
enterprises 75,75 -
Other financial liabilities 15 16.18 0.20
Gther current liabilities 18 156.85
Provistons 17 0.29 -
Current tax liabilities {net) ] 68.48 -
Total current liabilities 638.11 0.20
Total equity and liabilities 19,217.91 0.45
Summery of Significant Accounting Policy 1.2
See Accompaning notes to the financial statements 31013
As per our report of even date
For Nikhil Warankar & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 153107W
1
N e
CA Lk ar Abhishek Narbaria
Proprietor Director
Membership number: 198983 DIN: 02733060 DIN: 01873087

Place: Pune
Date: 23rd May 2025

UDTN _ 25198183 sMop sPI3g¢




NES DATA PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly known as Natural Environment Solutions Private Limited)
(CIN: U63119PN2017PTC242546)

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts in % Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

Sr. Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended March 31
No. March 31 2025 2024

Revenue from operations -

2 [Otherincome 19 630.75 -

3 |Total Income (1+2) 630.75 -

4 |Expenses
Cost of services - o
Employee benefit expense - -
Finance costs 20 80.93 -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 85.01 -
Other expenses 22 48.86 0.20
Total expenses 214.80 0.20

5 |Profit before exceptional item and tax {3-4) 415,95 {0.20)

€ |Exceptional item

7 |Profit before tax (5-6) 415.96 {0.20}

8 [Tax expense

Current tax 8 130.32 -
Deferred tax 8 {7.69) -
Total Tax Expenses 122.63 -

9 |Profit after tax {7-8) 293,32 {0.20)

10 |Other ¢comprehansive income
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods -
- Changes in the fair value of equity investments at FVOQ! -
- Remeasurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans 3
- Income tax relating to these itermns
Other comprehensive income

11 [Tetal comprehensive income {9+10) 293.32 (0.20)

12 [Earnings per equity share of Face value of X 10 each

Basic (in %) 23 1,845.38 (2.00)
Diluted (in ) 23 1,845.38 (2.00)
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Nikhil Warankar & Co of NES DATA PRIVATE LIMITED

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 153207W

&
NoEEp-
tkhil Warankar

Proprietor
Membership number: 198983

sh Kumar Sahay Abhishek Narbaria
o Director
DIN: 01733060 DIN: 01873087

Place: Pune
Date: 23rd May 2025

UDIN - 251987 93 Mo ps DI3z5k.



NES DATA PRIVATE LIMITED
{Formerly known as Naturaf Environment Selutions Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Cash flows for the Year Ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts in X Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended March 31 2025 For the year ended
March 31 2024
Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit hefore tax for the year 415.96 {0.20)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amoartisation expense 85.01 o

Finance Cost 80.93 -

Capital reserve {200.00)

Operating profit before working capital changes 381.50 {0.20)

Adjustments for changes in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables S S

{lncrease)/ decrease in other financial assets [426.97) e

(Increase)/decrease in other assets {7.69) -

Increase/ {decrease} in trade payables 320,92 -

{Increase)/decrease in other nan eurrent assets {119.59) -

{Increase)/decrease in other current assets {1,909.70} -

Increase/ [decrease) in other non-current liabilities 156.85 -

Intrease/ {decrease) in other financial liabilities 96.89 0.2¢6

Increase/ {decrease) in other liabilities 68.48 -

Increase/ (decrease) in provisions 6.31 -

Cash generated from operations (1,432.60) -

Income tax paid {net of refunds) {122.63) -

Net cash flows from operating activities {1,555.24) -

Cash flow from Investing activitles -

Purchase of property, plant & equipment, right of use of assets (ROU) {202.52) -
Purchase of right-oi-use assets (454.92} -
Capital work-in-progress (9,968.19) -
Loans granted (933.60) -
Other financial assets {non-current + current) o ke
Bank deposits (non-cash equivalents) {5.000.00} -

Net cash generated from investing activities {16,565.64) -

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares 17,095.50 -

Payment of principal portion of lease liabifity 455,01 -

Interast paid on lease liability {18.09) -

Interest paid on term loan (62.84)

Repayment of long-term horrowings - -

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 924,19 -

Dividend paid -

Net cash generated from financing activities 18,393.77 -

Net Increase/{Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents 272.90 -
Add: Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 0.45 0.45

Cash & Cash equivalents as at the end of the Pariod 273.35 0.45

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Balances with banks - on current accounts 255.10 -

Barik balances other than above 18.25 .

Cash in hand - 0.45

273,35 0.45

Note:

The standalone statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7,

As per our report of even date

For Nikhil Warankar & Ca

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 153107W

ponp .

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of NES DATA PRIVATE LIMITED

'Statement of Cash Flows'.

e A

Umes mar Sahay Abhishek Narbaria
Propriator Directo: Director
Membership number: 198983 DiN: 01733060 DIN: 01873087

Place: Pune
Date: 23rd May 2025

UDIN - 25149753 Erobspazzp
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NES DATA PRIVATE LUMITED

{Formexly known as Natural Environment Solutions Private Limited)

{CI0: UG3119PN201TPTC242548)

Naotes 1o the dal fal for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts in rupees lakhs except share and per share dara, unless otherwise stated)

1 Company overview
NES Data Private Limited [formerly known as Naturat Envireninent Solutions Private Limited} {'the Company’) was incarperated on 2nd February 2017 as a Private Comnpany under the Companies Act, 1956

The Company is engaged i the business of praviding a range of colocation and managed services with a facus on sustainability and ianavation in devetoping edge and cantainerized data centers.

2 Summary of material accounting policies

a) of pli and basis of preparath
The financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025 have been prepared in ] with Indian A ing Standards (“Ind AS”} notified under the Companies {Indian Accaunting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and G ies {Indian A ing Standards) dment Rules, 2046 {as amended fram tire to time), and presentation requirements of Division (| of Schedule lll 10 the Compantes

Act, 2013, [Ind AS compliant Schedule I1l}, as applicable ta the financial statement,
The financial stataments have been prepared on the acerual and going concam basis, and the historical cost canvention except where the fnd AS requires a different accounting treatment.

The financtal statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 23 May 2025,

Fitst time adoption of indian i dards
These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2025, are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periads up to and including the year ended 1 April 2023, the Company has

prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014
{‘Indian GAAP'),

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comely with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 31 March 2025, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2024, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financtal statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2623, the
Company’s date of transition to ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the bafance sheetasat1 April 2023 and

the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

A Exceptions applisd
Ind AS t01 allows first time adopters certain exemptions and certain optional exceptions from the ri ive application of certain ts under Ind AS as follaws:

1) Estimates

The estimates at 1 April 2023 and at 31 March 2024 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAP {after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies)
apart from the following items where application of Indian GAAP did not require estimation:

FVTGC! - unquoted and quoted equity shares

FVTPL - debt securities

Impairment of financial assets based en expected credit loss medet

The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflact conditions at 1 Apri! 2023, the date of transition ta (nd AS and as of 31 March 2024.

2} Classitication and measurement of financial assets
The Company has dassified financial assets on the basis of the facts and circurastances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

3) Recognition of financial assets and finandal Habilities
The Company has elected to apply recogmtion requirements for financial assets and finanial liabilities as per Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions oecurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS.

4) Hedge accounting
The Company uses derivative financial insteuments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks respectively. Under Indian GAAP, there is no mandatory standard that deals

preh ty with hedge ing, which has resulted in the adoption of varying practices. The Company has designated various ecanomc hedges and applied economic hedge accounting principles to
avoid profit or loss b, All the hedges desi d under Incian GAAP are of types which qualify for hedge accounting in accordance with Ing AS 109 also, Mareaver, the Company, hefore the date of
transition to Ind AS, has designated 2 transaction as hedge and also meets all the corditions for hedge accounting in Ind AS 109. Consequently, the Company continues te 2pply hedge accounting after the

date of transition to Jad AS.

Exemptions applied
Ind AS 10% allows first-ime adopters cerntzln ions fram the r pect licatian of cartain requi under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions:

1) Deemed cost for Property, plant and equlpment and Intangible assets
“The Company has elected te continue with the carrying vatue far all of its praperty, plant and eguipment and fntangible assets as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind ASs,

measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.

b) F ional and p i Yy
The financial statements are presented in indlan Rupees {INR), which is the fi | and p if v. The financizl statements values are rounded to the nearest lakhs {INR 00,000), except when

otherwise indicated,

Current versus non-cutrent dassification
The Company prasents assets and liabilites in the balance sheet based on currentf non-current classification
{)) An asset is classified as current when itis:
» Expected to ke realized or intendedto sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
+ Held primarily for the purpose of trading
« Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reperting period, or
» Cash or cash equivalents unlass restiicted from being exchanged or used ta setile a liakility for at least twelve months
after the reporting period
(i) All other assets are classified as non-current.

c]

(1) A liability is classified as uerent when:
s It is expected to be settled in nermal operating cycle
* itis held primarily for the purpose oftrading
« It 1s due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
« There is no ungonditional right 10 defer the settlement of the liability for at least tweive months after the reporting periad
{iv) All other Eabitities are classified as non-current.
{v) Daferred tax assets and liabilities are dassified as nan-current assats and liabilities.
Sased oh the nature of service, the Company has ascertained its operating cyde as twelve months for all assets and labilities,




d) Property, plant and squipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of a lated o iation and jated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, cost directly attributable to bring the assets
to its warking condition for the intended use and barrowing costs, if capitahzation criteria are met, Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at tha purchase price

Subsequent axpenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added ta its book value only if nt inereases the future benafits fram the existing asset beyond its previously assessad standard of
performance. All other expenses on existag groperty, plant and equipment, ncluding day-to-day repair and maintenance axpenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and
|oss for the period during which such expenses are ingurrad.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equiprtent are measured as the difference batween the net dispasal proceeds and the carrying amount af the assat and are recognized in the
statament of profit and foss when the asset is de-recognized.

Depreciation en property, plant znd equipment is provided on the straight-line method over their esti d useful lives, as esti d by the M Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, prescribes
useful lite for Fixed assets. Further scheduie 1l also allows companies to use higher/lower usefui live and residual value If such useful live and residual values ¢an be technically supported and justification for
diffarencas is disclosed in the financial statements. The Management beheves that depreciation rate currently used fairly reflects the estimate of the usetu! lifes and residual value of progerty plant and
equipments, though these rates in certain cases are different from lives prescribed under Schedufe Il

The Company has astimated the followisg wseful lives to provide iaticn on its property. plant and equigment, as foliows:
Asset description Useful life
Motar Vehicle 6 years

Leasehald improvements are amortised over the useful life of assets or the primary period of leasa, whichever is shorter.

Pra-rata depreciation is provided from / upto the date of puschase / disposal for assets purchased or sold during the year. Assets individually costing [NR 5,000 or less are depreciatad over 2 period of one
year.
The residual values, useful lives and mathodis of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropiiate.

Praperty, plant and equipment under instalbation or construction as at balance sheet date are shown as capital work-in-pregress and tha related advances are shown as other assets.

2} Revenue recognition
Ravenue is recagnised on the basis of approved contracts regarding the tansfer of goads or services %o a customer for an amount that reflects the consideration ta which the entity expects ta be entitled in

exchange for those goods and services.

Revenue towards faction of a parf ligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable ideration) all d to that perf bl The 17, ion price of
goads sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration. Any amounts ble from the are r ised as revenue after the control over the goods sold and services rendered are
transferred to the customer.

Vartable consideratien includes incentives, rebates, d exc. which is esti d at contract i idering the tarms of variovs schemes with custamers and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue racognised will not eceur when the associated uncertainty with the varizble consideration is subsequently resolved. [t is reassessed at
end of each reporting pericd,

Satisfaction of performence obligation

Revenue is recognised when {er as) the Cornpany satisfies a performance obligation by teansferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a cuslomer. An asset is transterred when {or as) the customer
abtains control of that asset. For each perfarmance ohligation identified, the Company determine at contract inception whether it satisfies the performance obiigation over time or satisfies the parformance
obligation at a point in time.

Where perfarmance cbligation is satisfied over tims, the Company recognizes revenue over the contract period. Whare performance obhgation s satisfied at a point in time, Company ¢ecognizes revenue
when customer obtains comtrel of promised goeds and services in the contract.

Rentolincemea

service revenue includes rental revenue for use of leased prermises and related ancillary services. Revenue from leased put premises under an operating lease s
cancellable periad (lease term from revenue}, except whers there is an uncertainty of ultimate collection. ARer lease term lar revenue where there is no non-cancellable pertad, rental sevenue is recogrized
a5 and when services are rendered on a monthly basts as per the contractual terms prescribed under agrasment entered with customers.

d on 2 straight line basis over the ron-

Revenue from lease income is classified as operating or finance lease as per the fease policy at point {f) below

Gther anciflary services
fevenue fram other ancillary servicas mainly includes other value added services. ltis. recognised as and when the services are renderad in accordance with terms of respective agreements,

f} Leases
Company as a lessee
The Company assesses whether a contyact is, or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, 3 lease if the contract conveys the right to control the Cuse of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for cansideration. T assess whether a contract canvays the nght 10 centrol the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:
i) the contract invalves the use of an dentifled asset,
b} the Company has substantially zll of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
iii} the Compsany has the right to direct theuse of the asset.

At the commencemant date of the lease, the {ompany recognises a right-of-use asset and a correspanding fease liability for all lease arrangementsin which it is a lessee, except for shert-term leases {leases
with a term of twelve months or less), leases of low value 2ssets and, for contract where the lessee and lessor has the tight to terminate a lease without permission from the other party with na more than an
Insignificant penalty. The lease expense of such short-term leases, low value assets leases and cancellable leases, are recogmsed as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

At the commaencament date, lease lisbi'ty is measured at the present value of the lease paymants to be paid during non-cancellable period of the contract, discounted using the incremental borrawing rate,
The ght-of-use assets is initizity recegnsed at the amount of the initlal measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at ar before commencement data less any lease incentives
recewved and any initial direct costs.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is messured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Lease liability is subseq measured by i ing the carrying amount ta reflect
interest on the laase liahdity {using effective intarest rate method) and seducing the carrying amount ta reflect the lease payments rade. The right-ef-use asset and lease liabifity are 3lso adjusted to reflact

any lease madifications or revised in-sub fixed lease

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:
The Company applies the short-term Fease recognition exemplion 26 113 short-term leases {i.e. these feases that have a Jease term of 11 months or less frem the commencament date and do not contain a
purchase optian). It alsc applies the lease ofll lue assets ri i ion to leases of assats that are considared to be low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets

are recognised as expense on a straight{inebasis over the lease tarm.




h

Company as a bessor

As a lessor, Leases for which the Company is 3 Yessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease substantially transfer ail the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finante lease. Adl other leases are classified 25 operating leases

Income from operating leases where the Cornpany is a lessar is recognised as income on 3 straight-ine basis cver the lease term unless the receipts are structured lo increase in line with the expected general
inflation to compensate for the expected nflationary tost increases. The resgective leased assets are included in the Standaione Balance Sheet based on their hature, Leases of property, plant and equipment
whera the Company as a fessor has substantizlly transferred all the risks and rewards are classified as finance lease. Finance Jeases ase capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased
praperty or, If lowar. the present value of the mimmum lease payments, The corresponding rent receivables, net of interest income, are included in other financial assats. Each lease receipt is allacated
batween the asset and interest income. The interest income is recogmised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss ever the lease pericd so as to preduce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the asset for each period.

ployee henefits exp and reti
(i) Gratuity ability
The Company prowides for gratuity, 2 defined benefit plan (the “Geatuity Plan”) cavering eligibic employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum pay o vested employees at r t, death,
incagacitation or tesmination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's base: salary and the tenure of employment. The liakility is determined based on an actuarial valuation carried
out by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date using the projected unit credit methed. Actuarial gains / icsses are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit er
eredit to retained earmings through ather comprehensive income i the year in which they eecur.

(ii} Compensated absences

The employees of the Company 2ze entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in rature. The emplayees can carry forward up to the specified portion of the
unutilized aceumulated compensated absences and utilize it in futare perieds or receive cash as per the Company policy. The expected cost of accurulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial
valuation [using the projected unit creditmethod) based on the additional samount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. The expense on
nan- lating cor d ak ized in the of profit and loss in the vear in which the absences ocecur.

The Company presents the liability 35 current liakility in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional legal and contractual right to defer its settfement for twelve months after the
reporting date.

{iii} Provident fund

The Company's contribution to provident fund is charged to the statement of prefit and loss. The Company's ions towards pravident fund are dep d with tha Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner under a defined contribution plan, in accordance with Employees’ Provid Funds and Miscell; F Act, 1952,

Tax expense

Tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Current income-tax 15 measured at the amount expected 1o be paid to the tax autharities in accordance with the [ncome-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India
and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used 1o comgute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
repaiung date.

[Seferred income taxes reflect the impact of temparary differences between taxable ingome and accounting income onginating Quring the current year and reversal of timing differences for the eariier years.
Deferrad tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enactad at the reporting date,

d tax liabilities are r d tor 2l taxable temporary differances, except when the deferred tax liabitity arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that 1s not
1 business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor the taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recogmzed for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. Defarred tax assets are recognized only to the extent thatt s prabable
that taxable profit will be available against which deductibie temperary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and urused tax fosses can be utilized, except when the deferred tax asset arises
frem the initial recognition of an asset of lakity in a transaction that s net a busmess combination and, at the time of the transaction, affacts nerther the accounting profit nar the taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asstts is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced ta the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avalable to allow or part of the
deferred tax assat to be utilised, Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reperting date and are recognized to the extent that it has became prebable that future taxable profit will allaw the
deferred tax assets 1o be recavered.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in prafit or loss, except when they are related to items that are racegnised in cther comprehensive incame or directly in equity, in which case, the cutrent and deferrad
tax are alsor ized in other hi JRcome or directly in equity respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same
taxabie entity and the same taxaticn authoriy.

Provisicn and contingent lability

A pravision is recognized whan the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, and it is probable that an outfow of resources embadying ecanomic Eenefits will be required to settie the
abligation that ¢an be reliably estimated. Pravisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimale required to settie the obligation at the balance sheet date. These
estimates are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obiigation that arises. from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the accurrence or nen-occurrence of one ar more uncertain future events beyond the control of
the Comypany or a peesent obligation that is not racognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be requirad to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where thare 15 a liability that cannat berecognized hecause it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize 2 contingent liahility but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a centract that gives rise to a financial asset of ona entity and a financial iability er equity insttument of another antity.

1. Financial assets
All finaneial assets are recognized initialy at fair value. Transaction costs that are dicectly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets [other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss] are

added te the fair value d on initial ition of fi ial asset. Purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

(i) Financial instruments at amortized cost:

A finangial instrument is measured at the amertized cost if both the following conditions are met:

) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hald assets for eoilecting contracsual cash flows, and

b} <ontractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) en the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financiat assels are subsequently measured at zmortized cost using the effective interest rate [ER) method. Amortized cost s calculated by taking lnto account any discount or
premium on acquisiticn and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is inclyded in cther incame in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising fram impairment are
recegnized in the statement of profit andloss.

{ii} Financial instrument at Fair Vaiue thiough Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
A financial instrument is classified and measured at fair value through QCIif both of the following criteria are met:

) The objective of the business model 1s achieved both by coilecting contractual cash fiows and salling the financiaf assets, and
) The asset's contractual cash flows resresent solely payments of printipal and intarest.
Financial instruments meluded within the OCI category are measured initially as well as 2t each repSith A, Fair value movements ara recognized in OCL On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain ar loss previcusiy r d in OC! is reclassified from OClto
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(#ii) Finan<ial instrument at Fair Yalue through Profit and Loss
Any financial instrument, which does nat meet the critena for categorization at amortized cost or at fair value through other camprahensive income, is classified at fair valua through profit and loss. Financial
instruments included in the fair vatue through profit and loss category are measured at faic valua with all changes recognized in the statemant of profit and loss,

{iv) De-recogaition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows fram the asset have expired, ar the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flaws from the asset.

11, Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognized initiaily at fair value and, in the case of loans and horrowings and payables, net of directly attnibutable transaction costs.

The sub: of financial liabilities depends on their as described below:
{i) Financial liabikties at fair value through profit or less

Financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or fess include financial liabrities designated upan initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss,

(i} Financial lahbilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing laans and botrrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR] method. Gains and losses are recognised i the statement of

profit and lass when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amartisation pracess

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on zequisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR ameortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

of fingncial Niabiliti
A financial liability is d gnised when the abli under the liability is discharged or cancelied or expires. When an existing financial liabifity is replaced by anether from the same lender on substantially
diffevent terms, or the terms of an existing liatility are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the deracognition of the onigmal lishility and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts s recognised in the statement of profit and foss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a cureently enforceable legal tght to offset the recogmized amounts and there is an intention to
sattle on a net basis, 1o realize the assets and settia the lizbilities simultaneousiy,

Impairment

(i} Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss aliowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through orofit or less. Loss allowance for trade receivables with ne
significant financing component is measwad at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, For all other financial assets, expected credit [osses are measured at an amount equal to the twelve menth ECL, unfess there
has been a significant incraase in credit risk from initial racognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses {or reversal} s recognized as an impairment loss {or

gan) in statement of profit and loss.

[if} Non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the cartying amounts of its tangible and intangible assels to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment Loss. f any such indication txists, the recoverable amaunt of the asset is estimated i erder to determing the extent of the impairment loss {if any). Where it 1s not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount af an individual asser, the Company estimates the recovarable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasenable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identifiad, corporate assets are also abocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating umits for which a reasonzble and consistent
allocation basis can be identified. Recaverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows ace discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects currant market assessments of the time value of meney and the nisks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future tash flows have not baan adjusted.
If the recoverable amount af an asset (ar tash-generating usit) is esimated te be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit} is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognized immediatelyin the statement of profit and less.

An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the 2stimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
revised recoverable, amount provided thal this amount does not exceed the carsying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumubated amortisation or depreciatien) kad no impairment loss
has been recagnised for the assetin prioryears.

Segment reporting

An cperating segment is a component of the Campany that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues ang incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Company’s ether companents, and for which discrete financial information 1s avarlabte. Qperating segments are reported In @ manfier consistent with the internal reporting provided te the
chief operating decision maker ['CODM'). The Cempany's Board of Director’s has been identified as the CODM wha is respensible for financial decision making and assessing performance.

Earnings per share {'EP5")
Basic earnings per share are calcutated by dividing the net profit or (oss for the period attributable to equity sharehalders by the weighted average number af equity shares outstanding during the period
including equity sharss that will be issuegupen the conversion of 2 mandatortly convertible instrument.

Diluted EPS amounts are computed by gividing the net profit attnbutable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamings per
share and 3lso the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upen conversion of ali dilutive potential equity shares. Fhe diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the
procaeds receivable had the shares been sctually 1ssued at fair value {i.e. the average market valug of the cutstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginming of the
year, uness issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each year presentad.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalants in the baiance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject ta an insignificant risk of changes

invalue.
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Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognetion and measurement prinaiples of Ind AS requires management of the Company to make estimates and judgements that affact the
reportad bal of assets and fi ies, discl of i ¢ liabiities as at the date of standatone financial statements and the reported amaunts of income and expenses for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumpgtions are reviewsd on an ongoing hasis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the peried in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

The Company uses the following critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions in preparation of its financial statements:

i, Leases
The Company evaiuates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of 2 lease requires significant judgement. The Corngany uses significant judgement in

assessing the lease term lincluding anticipated renewals) and

the apgplicable discount rate.

The Company determinas the lease term as the non-cancellable periad of a lease, tagether with both periods covered by an option to extend the iease if the Company is reasonzbly certain to exercise that
option; and periods coverad by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assassing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and 1ces that creata an i ive for

the Company to exertise the option to extend the lease, or nat to exercise the eption to terminate the lease. The Company ravises the lease term if there is a change in the nen-cancellable periad of a laase.

The discount rate s liy based on the al borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with simifar
characteristics.

il. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful ife of property, plant and equipment at the end of each rep period. This nent may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Impairment of investments in subshdiaries
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost [net of umpawrent, if any} annuaily, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amaunt, the impairment loss is accounted for in the statement of profit ard loss.

iv. Fairvaiue of fi
When the fair value of financial assets and finanaial lisbilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inpuls ta these models zre taken from observable markets where passible, but where this 15 not feasible, a degree of judgement s required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as kquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions ahout thase factors could affect the

reported fair value of financiel instruments.

v. Impaimment of financial assets {other than at fair value)
Measurement of impairment of financial assets require use of estimates, which have been explained in the note on financial assets, financial Labiliues and equity instruments, under impairment of financial

assets (ather than at faw value)

vi. Deferced tax assets
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable prefit will be available against which the deductible temporary differances and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, the
Campany exescises its judgement to reassess the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end ef each reparting perted.

vi. Provisions and
The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a resut of past events and it is probable that outflow of resources wil' be required to settle the obiigations, These provisions are
reviewed at the end of each reporting penad and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

The Company uses significart judgernents te assess contingent liabitities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed whan there 15 3 possible cbligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed anly by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one ar more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where i1 is either
ot prebabia that an outflow of resources will be required ta settle the cbligation or a reliable of the amaunt cannot be made, Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the

standalone financial statements.

wiii. Employee benefits
The accounting of emplayee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefitrequires the Company to use These ions have been explained under emptoyee benefits note,

Recent accounting prencuncement

Ministry of Corgorate Affairs (“MCA”) nolifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards undar Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Ruies asissued frem time to time. For the year ended
31 Match 2025, MCA has notified ind AS - 117 Insurancte Cantracts and

amendments to 'nd A% 116 — Leases, relating te sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Campany w.e.f1 Aprit 2024. The Company has teviewed the new pronouncements and based on its
evaluation has determined that it does nat have any sigmificant impact in its financlal statements.

New and amended standards issued but not effective

On 7 May 2025, MCA notifies the amendments 1o Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These amendments 3im to provide clearer guidance on ing currency exch bility and
estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annuai periods beginning an or after 1 Aoril 2025. The Company is currently assessing the probable
impact of these amendments on its financial statements,
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HES OATA PRIVATE UMITED
{kormserty kanawn as Natural Emvironmment Sohutions Private Limited}

Nates foralag pan of the Standalona Financial Statements
{All amounts In # Lakhy , antess otherwise stated]

3 Property, plant and squipment

Partcular: Vehicles Total

Gross camying value

Balance 3¢ at 1 Apdl 2013

Additions R
usposals o

Balance a wt 31 March 1624 ; s
Additions 163.59 163.69
Orposals a

Balsnce ay at 31 March 2025 T 163.69 163,69

=y +

Balanca as et April 2013 -
Charga for the year 3 E

| Seposals
Halaré at 31 31 March 2024
Charge for tha vear

| psgosas
Balance s ot 31 March 2625 |

Net carrying value
A wt 31 Marth 2025 11791 |
(A5 at 31 March 2024 N ==l

4 Right-of-use assens

25.78 4578

]
sl ase

13751 |
-]

[Particutars

Gross eTying vakia
Balance & atl Apr 2023

Addimns |
[Dispaszks

Bakaned 34 at 31 March 2024
Additwars

Disposak

%18 A5

ﬂ-us:‘ 43415

Gatance & at 31 Murrh 2025, -

Balance &t 4t 1 ApHl 2023
Chargefar the year
IDispomale £

[Bolance & at 31 March 2074 = . = T = |
Charge forthe year 1821 3923

s pols |
Bolange, as a $1 March 2015 nn - 1|

Gross Vakia
[as 8131 March 3m5 T
|

As =t 3\ March 2004

Met camying volua
As 8131 March 2005 | 256,92 | 454,
Ag =1 31, March 2024 | B |

A st March 31, 2025 E

" AsstMee 31,2004 |

Dpening balanca |
Additions dunng the vear 9,958 59 il
aleed dunng the year il |
a9y | B |

Cagltal wark-in-progress ageing schedule

/i3 a1 33 Marth 2025

Pastiealar Amount (1 intanglbie pisets under develogmant for a peried of |
_ lewsthanlyesr_ 12 yasn 223 yewrs MosthanZyems | Toul

Projects in pragress 9.963.19 s 5,968.19

Projacts temporariy suspented o ol

Tota 9,968.43 B . $,964.19

A1 331 March 1028 =

Particulars = Amount in intangibée sisats under developmant for 4 peried of - i

Loss than 1 year 21 yean More than 1 years Tetal

Projects In progress

[Projscts temparanil suspended
Total

Loans

-

Particulan

As 3t March 13, 2025

Ag at Marth 31, 2034

[ Unsecured and considered good unless othenwrse stated]

Non.cyrrent
Loan to relaled parties 246 10
(oanta athers 58350

93960
Lass! Allowanca for expected cradit losg .
Tatsl non-current YT -

‘Un-sacurad Losns to Related party are repayable after the perlod of 4 yeara. interest Pryeble on the losas i atthe rete of $.10 % pa

Other Rnancial istets
Farticulars

Ay mthtarh 11, 2025

As at March 31, 1024

(Unsecured and considered good unless otherwrse stated)
Non-turrent

Securtty deports

Cther receivadles

Les: Loss akdwante

2717

1480

a1 17

e

Total nop-current
[ Unsecured and considered good unies atherwre stated)

Cument

Security depasits

. Consdered goud

- Consdered daubrful

From related party (Refer note 31)

25.30

1530

25.20
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Incorne tax
Tha rmajor companents of Income tax expense for the year ended 11 March 2025 snd 31 March 2024 armc

Amaunts recagnised in statement of arufit and losy

Farticulars For the year ended March 31 | For the year ended March 31
L 025 Mk
Gurrent Income tax
Curent yasr 130,52 -
Delerred tax expense
Ongwation and revarsal of teporary differences {769
Total tax expense 12253
Recontiiation of siiecthve tax rete
Particulsr Fox the year ender March 31 | For the year snded March 11
2005 2004
Profit before tax 41596 -
Enacted tin rate i india 2517 -
T amount 3t the enacted income tax rate 10853 -
Add { {deduer) irgact af -
Nen-decuctible axpenses EEE)
Kon-taxable income [2.61)
oramed 2323 -
Taxes for earber years .
Others 2248 -
Totel 487.26
Tax Rate 517
Total tax expense 12283 -
Deferred tax sssets/{Eibitles) [ra1)
Particuliny s 2t March 33, 2025 A3 atiarn 11, 2024
Froperty, plant and equipmant and vl angiie assets &10 -
Carry forward tax ksses - -
Proviion for empioyes benefits 152 -
Provisions for 35581 ratir ement ohigativrs .
Roght 0f urse assals (118 503 -
tause labilitres 11452 -
AHowancs far expectad credit loss on finandal assats
Fa value of FVTOC! financal instruments = o
Others o0z
Deferred tox nysets/ (liabiiities) (ner] 753 -
forred tax awsets | llabilities during the year snded 11 March 2025
[Paricutan Adat March 31, 2014 Racognied in Praft | Recogmued in Othar | Asat March3L 2625
or loy 1
Procey. slast snd sousmest and ml anoble assels 6.0 -
| Carry forward tas lowes
Provaien for emprovee benefits 158 159
B i — ’ i
Night of e aseny (314500 1914 50
Leate Labities 114 52 11457 -
o for sxpacted credit loss an Hrancial assets . .
Foaur o of IVTOC! Finanoal matruments B .
Others om {aaz
Deferred tax suens/{labiities] (net) 780 759 | B | = -
Movement in defermed tax assets snd Habititles during the year ended 31 March 2024:
Particulars Aa ut 1 April 2023 TRecognised in srafit Recogrised in Othar 23 st March 31, 2074
| orloss ive income
Froperty, plant and equipment 2id intangible assets 3 . - -
Canty forward tax losses - - o
Provinion for employes henaftis - - - -
Pravisions for asset retirement shikigations o c o
Right of ute assets. - J -
Loase habiiies - - -
Abowancs for eqedted cred 635 an financial assets ¥ . 4 5
Faw value of FYTOCH finangal instraments i 5
Il
O#ferred tax avsets/{llablities) (rat) = - =
Income tax assets and Hainlitles with tex suthorties
| Particulars | Asat March 31, 2025 As 3t Maech 33, 2024
Incoma tax Vamifities

Current Tk fiabektres [net)

| 58,45

Other assats

Particulan T At at March 31, 2025 | A3 at March 31,2024

{ | |

Noa-carrent I I

Advante to vendors n9s &

Total nen currnt 5 | i) =

Current |

| Prepad perses 13534

Baiarce with govemmant putkante 177223 -

Other achasces gt 11 -
1,909 70 =

| Total current

<ash and cash equivatents

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Particuling

Balances with banks

- I current accounts 255 10 S

. Infixed deposits (anginat matarity less thar 3 months) 1825 .
Cash on hand . 645
Total 273 35 0.25.

Bank halances other than cash and cash equivalents

AsatMarch 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Fmed deposits with Banks |sogeal matunty between 3 months and 12 moeths] AP\RAN% 5,000.00
[ 7 SEeE




Equity share capitai

£.Rights, preferonces and restrictions sttached to squicy shares

Panicuiers Mumbrer of shares AsatMarh 3L, | Wumberof thares s ot March 31, 7028
023

Authorised share capltal
Enuity shares of % 10/- qach W00 2.00
ol 0,000 = 200 |

20 00 |
Jssued, subseribad and paid up thare capital |
Equity sharos of T 10/ each 15,395 13 10,000 100}
Total 15,355 159 10,000 100 |
A.Recanciliation sl shares ovtstanding 2t the beginning and at the and of e year
Equity Shares As mt March 35, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Mo of thares L Amount Na of thas Amaunt

Humber of shares #astanding at the begioning of the year 10,000 | 100 16,000 Tan
[ Add: Changes during the year 5835 059 = .
Humber of sharas outstanding S1the end o the year 15,895 L53] 39,000 100

The Company has avly single class of Equity Shares having 4 par valie of € 1O, Rogerdingly, all squtty shares rank aquatly with regard Lo dividends and sharam the Campany’s residual assets. Each hokder of equity shares s entitled to anavote per share. On winding up of the Company, the holders of equly
alt

shares will be antitied te recene the resdual assets of the Company, remsning sfter di

€ Rggregate number of botus shares Issued, shares issued for contiderstion other then cash and shares bought back during the period of five procedi
There ar# i banus shares wsed, shares rssued for considerauian other than cash 2nc shares boaght back ol kive preceding

D. Details of shareholders hoiing mone than 5% of shares of tha Compiny

of amounts 0 the mumber of equity shares hakd.

Toarticuters 21 3t March 33, 2025 As at March 11, 2024
| N of shares % holding N of tharey » holding
TCC Concept Linuted 15,702.00 98 79% - 0.00%
Ashish verma bt Q.00% $,000.00 5000%
aihishek Narbana - 000%] = 5,00000 S000%
£. Disclosure of shureholding of prontoters
Particuian AS #t March 33,2075 As #t March 11, 3074 % change
Ma of Shares % of tola! shares N af Sharmy | % of total sharey
Ashh Verrng - 0.00% 5,000.00 | 0 00% 100 00%.
Prasson Mishra 000% 500000 | 50 00% 100 00%
TCC Cancept Limaed 15,702.00 98.79% - 0.00% 100 00%
wmesh Kymar $aha 5000 oai% 0.00% im0
15,752.00 i 10,900.00 ] 100 00%
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 31 Mnreh 1023 | Kchmnge |
No of Shares % of 10tal thares NogfShwes _|%oftatalshares
Ashrsh Verma 5,090.00 0.00% 5.000.00 50.00%] [
Prasson Mehia 5,000 00 50 0% 5,000 00 50 09% o
Total 1t ,008.00 100.00% 10,000.00 103.00%]
Other sguity
Particufars Note AsatMarch 11,2025 | AsatMarch 33, Joa
Captal reserve 1 o0 00 | 5
Securitles premam accaunt " -
Retained earungs - 10.75
Total [9.75]
rmerve
Particulars _ | AaatMarcn a1, 2025
Opening balance -
addrtion (20000} -
Closing balance {200.00)/ -

Securities premiym account

Particuian

[opening balance
Addit lon

AsatMarchit, 2075 |

1703491

AsatMacn31 2024 |

]

Closing balanc:

£7,098.31

Ratsined eomnings

Particulars

Asat March 31,3025

As at Murch 31,

2034

Openg balance
N peafit far the geriod

055}
{0 20)

Clasing balance

[0.75]

Naturs and purpase of reserves -

Capital resenve

The Company has created this reserve by trantferring certam

Securities pramium KCout

‘Secutities g reserva s used Lo record the premaum on issue of share. The feserve 15 ubikied in accardance with the proveian of the act

Retalned samings

Amguak of retained earmings rapresents accumulated profit and fasses of the Company s an reparing date. Such profits and losses are after adjustment of payment of dividend, transfor ro any resarves as statytenly requirad and adjustment for
mezsured at FUTOCH Actuarial Gamy Loss arming aut of Actuanal valastion i mmmedatoty trassfermed ©

Bomowings

Retamed Esming.

i loss an

of ety i

Particulars

As at March 11, 2025

As et March 31,

, 1024

Non-current
Unsacured- at zmortised cost
Fram catated pan s

2419

Total non-cument bomowings

974.19

from Ra

Leass Habilitias

after the penod of 4 years. interest Payable on the borrowngs s of the rate of 9 10 % pa

Parjcylars

As at March 31, 2025

At at March 31, 2024

Non-currant
Lease labeitiex

17959

Total non-current

379.59

Current
Lexse bt

7542

Total current

J5.a1

A
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Othar financial liabAities

-lPtﬂkullrs As at March 31, 2025 25 gt March 31, 2024
MNot-Current

| sacurry deposits 689 -
Employee related labikty

Others payables 1202

o non-current 2032 -
Cument

Sacunity deposts

Expensa paysbles 16,18

Toa) current 16.18

Trade pryables

Fardculars As at March 34, 2025 Ad at March 31, 2023
Current

Tertal autstanding dues af mecro, small and medium enterpses
- 10 related parties [Refer nate )

- te glhers 23517
Total outstanding dues of other than micra, small and medism. enterpraes

- 1@ refated parties [Rafer note 31)

—taathers 1575 -
Total Current 326.52 -

Dlsclosure aa required by Micro, Small and

A ot March 31, 2008

Aa ot March 11, 2024 |

| 3munt and interest due thareon remaumng unpasd o any wopher covered under MSMIED Act, 1005;
U V)

| armount due to micra and eraal enterpmses {mckuding captil <redton)

18517

nt made 10 1

(21 in termv of seetion 16 of 1he MSMED Act 2006 akng with the amounts of the

nd the sppowted day during each accounting year

rable far the of deday in maks rment {which have besn sad byt
the =nd of ek

1) The aiossnl of interest due and

10 The supsbier beyo
the 3ppointed day durng the year] but without addng |

L erest 5,

ao

ified under tha MSMED Act 2005,

{r) The amount of infevett acerued and

¥
i} The amount of further interest remaining dua and payable even wn th sUccebding years, unt such date when the interest gues 25 abave ara actually pawf to the smal enterprse fov the purpase of dsakowance o5 3 deduct bie aipenditure |

Lungiar sectron 23 of the MSMED Act 005

Trade payabies aguing as =t 33 March 2025
Farticulars ot due , trom s i ]
Less than 1 year gl 12 yeans 1.3 yoan More thar 3 yeary Totsl |
1) Micro, Small and Medhum Enterpreses - 145,17 - | . 24517 ]
i} trthers - IS - - .75
[ul}Dsputed dues - micro, small and medwim Enterprises
[m)Disputed dues - othery . L |
tatal | - 32092 - | PR | 2001
Trade payabl s ot 31 March 1024
ot et don ! ey T —
| Liess than 1 year 1 -2 years 11 year Meore than I years Total
() M, Small and Medurs [nterprne - - - | - .
i} Others L b .
ol
. | 5
- -4 l -
Partotars As atMarch 31, 7625 AsatMarh 31, 2023
Nen-current
Prowision for smployee honafits:
Provisan for gratady N
Prowsion for Leave Frcashment 231 -
Total nan-curzent &bz B
Current
Provision for amployea banefits;
FProveion for gratuty o1
Provesion for Leave Encashmeng a1 -
Toted cument 029
Cther hxbiities
Particulars A3 2t March 31, 2025 5.t March 32,7024
Gurrent
Statytory due payabies 156 8BS -
Teta! current 1565 -
Barticuyiany For the year ended March 31 | For the year ended March 31 |
2088 2024
Dizaggregation of revenun
Within Indla
Outude India
Revenus from contracts with customent - -
Other incoma:
articulars For the year endad March 31 | For the your snded farchal
o5 2024
Intarest ncome undar effective Intarest method an :
Or fixed depasis 61057 =
On secunty deposit 11
On Inter co Interest wcome 18R
On fent Income - IRDAS 107
Tota! 530.75 | N
Finance costs
[Particulars For the year cndad March 11 T For the year anded March 31
2025 { 2024
Interest on GO 1233
Interest on inter - company depasit 3713
Interest on taxet 1338
Intermsi an lease liabilties 1809 .
Total 20.93
Dapreciation and amortisation expanse
|Particutars RA T For the year ended March 31 | For the yaar enced March 31
\‘{ Px le‘f 2025 2ma
Depreciation an praperty, plant snd ecuipment (Refer nate 3] W "? T sn
Depreciznion on rght of-use assets [Refer nore 4 N [ 92 2
Total 85.01
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Other expenses

Partieutars For the year andad March 31 | For tha year exded March 11
1005 | 2034

Buditors' Rermuneralion an on

Administrative expenses 117 |

Donatios Pad 500

Other Expanses 09

Traveking Expenses ) -

Specfy Sub Note Growzp 0.00 .

flates and taxes 051 -

Lexs Line Expenses 018 -

Padvertisement 2336 -

Total 48.85 D_a.U-

Note:
Payment to suditers [excluding taxes)

leheywendedled!Sl" Far tw yes ended March 11

Particulars
2025 | 2004
Budit fes CE 230
Faot kit fees. -
For olher senntes fintiudes Cemtications tc) o
Resmbursemnent of expenses 3
o] 0.75 9,20
Eamings Par Shar (EP5)
Particulors For the year ended March 31 | For tha year eoded March 31
2025 | 2014
Profit/{ioss) for the yaar 22332 " te.2a}]
Weighted aversge numbers of aquity shares for caleulatian of EPS: 15,895.00 10,000 09
Weightad-average numbars of equity shares for basic EPS. 15,395.00 10,000 03
Dutive impact of:
Wenghted- average numbers of equity shares for diuted E#% 15.585.00 10,000.00
$ace valus per equity share (X} 10,60 1000
£armingsylass) per share
Basic {in X} 1,835 3% (2.000
Ciuted {in %) 184535 {2 00




HES DATA PRIVATE LIMITED
[Formerly kpown 35 Natural Savironmes Solutions Private Limitad}
(CIN: USI119PN2017PTC42546)

Netes £ of the

24 ContingantLlabifitias & Commitments [ te tha extont not previdad lar)

A, Cantingent Eabiiites

[AH amaunts In ¥ Lakhs , unless othivwise statad)

Particwiass of Contingent Babilities

For thi yoar andad
March 31, 2015

1= e ————

Cantingunt Kabillties not provided for In respact of
a) Claims against the company nat acknouwdedged as debt
b} Guarantees exchoding Financials Guarantees

NI,

For ths year snded
_ March 31,2028

MIL

C) Other money for which the caripany Is contingently Hable

8. Commitment

Particulars of Lommitments

For the year ended
March 11, 2015

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

3] Estmated amount af coNTracts remaining o be executed on caphal sccoutl and notprowided 1or
b) Unca'led Habihty on shares and ather investments partly paid

) Cther commaments

NE

NIL

25 Leas
Where Company [sTessan
The Cormpany’s lease asset classes primarily consisk of leates for offira spaces.

The follawing i+ The nyavamant in lease BEabilitias as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Particular

Az at March 31, 2025

AsatMarch 31,2028

Balanes ax tha baginning of the year

Add - New |sases during the year

Add - Finance cost scerued dwing the perod
Less - CanceManon of (zates during the year
Les - Payment of lease fiabilities

476.15
18.09

Balanca atthe snd of the yeae

(43692
£55.01

Lol

Tha tabsle balow pravidas details regarding tha cantractual maturities of fease liabikitkes o4 an undiscounted basls:

Partkulars

As at March 31, 2025

Ay at March 31, 2024

Less than ona year
One 1o tive years
Marethan five years

7542
395

Tetal

455.01

The following H tha hreak-up of cusrant and non-current labHits

dar

As at March 31, 2025 ]

As at March 33,7024

i

| Current lease |abilities
Non-currant lease H

T5.42
ar9.5%

| Tatal

i
as5.e1 |

Balaw are the amounts recognised bn thae statement of profit and less;

[Particulars

Forths year anded March 312075 |
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 39.03 -
tnterest on Lease llabikities 1809
Expenses relat.ng 1o leases of low-value assets and short-term leases N
[nterest income on unwinding of fair vafuatisn of fease recelvablas -
Gain on terminatian of lease o
5732 -

Total

Below [s the amount recogained in the statemient of cash flow:

Particulary

Cash outllaw inciudad in Tinancing activity for repayment of prncigal during the year

rear andad Maxch 31 2024

Easty aulflow incivted in finantng actoty for rapayment of (nteress duringshe year

Total

‘Whare Company B lessar

Tpersting kease

The Company has entered into ogerating [exses Por some of 15 buildieg, plant and mathmery and other equipment. These typically have lease rerm of Detween 1 snd 10 years. The Company has recagnized an Amount, of Rs 10,56 Lakhs {March 31, 7024 - Rs 54.56 Lakhs) 25 rental

incama from Operating lease duning the year ended March 31, 2025

Futuse minimum ¢entals undes oparating eases 21 at year and aro a3 follows:

wlars

(ass than oneyear
10neto flue years

For the year ended March 31 2025
542

379.59

| Forvhe year ended March 312024

More than flve years

45501

atal

H

3

Fair valus maasuoromenis

The fair values of the finantial assers and {fabikties are inciuded at the amounk at wich thi could be

Fait valus hierarchy

Tha fair vaise irerarchy is based a0 inputs 10 valuation techmques thit are used to measure fair vafue Lhat are 2ither gbsarvable or uncbservable and consists of follawing:

Maasuremant of Fair Value

Lavad E: Categary inciudes financial assats and liabrities, that are measred in whola or in sigmficant gart by reference 10 publshed quoted prce {unadjusted) in a0 active market.

Lavad 2: Categery includes financial assots and liabities measured g a valuation basedon that
Laved 3: Category includes financial asets and lizbiknes maasured Uuing valuation techniques based or fon markat shaenvable inpurs This means that Fair values are cetarmined in whole or in gart us.eg 3 valuation model based on assumptions

prices from abservable Cureent market transactions in the same inskrument nor are they based on avaitable market data.

between witag parties, ather than m a forced or kgusdation saie.

ted by prices from observatie curcent market transacticns




The laltowing table shows the carrying amount of finzncal assets and financial liabiiities by categary:

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

T
Parsculars |
I
T

L2t (=] FVTPL

FTaS)

Flaancial assets
Investments in unguated aquity wstriments =
Laans

Trade receivabies

Cash and cash equivalents 73.3%

5,000.00
42637

Bank balances ather than cash and cash aquivalents

Other financial assets

Total financial agsets 6,639.91

Financial Habiltina
Borrawings

Lease liabiktes

Trade payables

Other finanuiat Habities

914 19

Erokrd
57.08

o 020

134220

|Total firancial lnbiities

255.01 .20 |

* The Company had acguired certaln equity instrumants lor purpose of holding For a langer duration and act far the purpose of selng in near term for short texm profit, Such instruments have been categorized as FYTOLI.

1) Finuncial a339ta and Habilttins measurad at fair valie - recurring fair value measurements

r
Particulars

As at March 31, 2015

A3 at March 31, 2024

Leval 1

[T Leval 3

Laval 1 Lervet 2

Laval 3

[Financial assets

investmants in quated sguity instruments. -

measured

i) Fair valua disclosure of financial assats and.

cost

f
Partiulars

At ¥t March 31,2025

As at March 11, 2024

Lewe

Lavel2 Levsld

Laval 1 Lavel 2

Laval 3

—
Financial 3csets

Lazns, nan cunrent

2919 60 - -
401 77 - s

Other financial assets, non current pf

1,342 37 - -

Financial Habift!ss

{Bortawings, non-current

92419 B ]

Jthar financial liabiiues, nan current L

524.15 i o

The fair vajues of !

b g8 are based on g

cash flows using a currant rate, They ore classiffed as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the we of

credit risk.

\npats, Ingiuding

Fair vatue of cash and cash equivalent, bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents, trade receivabies, tage payables, and gther current fngncial assets and Kabilities approximate their carrying amaunts largely due ta the short-term matunties af these iRstrumants.

There are na transters between levels I and 2 during the year.

Flnancial risk managament

The Company s activlies sspae 12 10 a vanety of financial risks- market risk, credit nsk and Houldity risk. The {ompany's primary facus 15 L0 foresee the unpredictatnkity of financal markets and seek

3 20! tverse effects on its a

The Company’s financial Habilities comprise of borrowings, trane payable and other liabilities 1o manage its operation and financial assets include trade recevables, security depasits, ioans and advances, elc, arises [rom its operation

The Campany’s serior management aversess the management of thege rrks, The Compeny's $enior management ensures that the Company's financial risk achwities are gavernad by 2ppropriste pokicies and proceduras and that finanoal risks are identitied, measured and
managed in accordznce with the Company's pokciat and nisk olyectives. The Board of Diretlors reviews and agrees polices

far managing each of these risks, which are summarised below
A, Eredit bk

Cradhl risk 15 the rsk of flnandial foss ta the Company § a customer or counterparty Lo a financial instrument fars (0 mest 1t contractual obligatien

The Company 15 exposed ta credit risk from ifs aperating ackivities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing actwities, Including degasats with banks and financial institubions and other financial instruments.

Lradit risk s managad on an entity lavel basis. The Company has adopted a policy of dealing oty with

sullicient cotlaterai, where appropriate, 2s a maans of m ugating sk of finanaial lss from defaults, The Company Mivests ony |

those instruments ssuet by mgh rated banks/ Institutions and govermment agencies. The Company essesses the credit quakity of the cistomer, taking into account its financial pasitien, pask experience and other Factors The Company's l0ans are considered to have low credt

sk,

Tha Company perindically monitars the recoverability and crect risks of s other finsncials assets including secunity deposits and other receivanles. The Company evaiuates 12 month expected credit losses for all the financial assets far which crecht risk has not increased. In tase
credit risk has increased significantly, the Company considers Ife time sipacted cradht losses for the pufpose of impairment provisioning.

The Company has used a practical expedlent by computing the expected cred’r loss aHowance for trage receivanles based on 4 prowision matriy, The provision matax takes into account historical cradit toss mxperfence and adjustad [or farward lasking mformation, The expected
credit foss aMowance is based an the ageng of the days for which the recefvables are due and the exprectsd koss rates a8 guan in the Pioyision matmx,

For sgemg anaiyss of the trade recemalie - Refer note

The detads of changes i akawance for ragit fosses dunng the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 for trade receivables are a3 fotlows:

Fartkulary

| Balancs at the Beginning of the year
Provided durmg the year
Reversal of pravision during the year

LN

Forthe yearerded March 312025 |

_Fortha year ended Mavch 31 2034

LLN

Balanca at the end of tha year

B, Liquidity risk

el e sufficient liquidity 1o meet its Nabditus whan they ara due, under both normal and stressed conditions, witheut Incurring uracceptabie lossex or rsking damage to the Company's reputation

The tabls below pravides details regarding the cantragtual maturities of financial Nabilitiey o undiscountad basis as at 31 March 2025

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Zempany wil encounrer dfficulty 1n meeting the obligations associated with 13 fmare al Lab hities that are settiad by delivering czsh or another financial asset. The Company's spproach to managing hquidity 1s Ta ensure, as £ar as possibhe, hat it

Particulars [ Camyingamaunt Up to 1 yasr [ 1-2 yaars { 2.5 years | More than 5 years Toul

Trade payables 31092 32057 | e = - 7092
{Borrowings Q.19 2 - 924.18 - 52433
Lease liabuities 45501 7542 | - 37958 - 4501
| Qther finanaial ifabilites 9108 1618 | 2092 | = 3 3708
Total 17¥.20 41251 | 80.92 1,303.78 - 1387.2¢
The tabie bebaw provides dutails regarding tha castractual iaturities of finaneial liabikities on undiscounted basis as zt 31 March 2024:

Paticulans Carmying smount__| Up to 1 year Liyan 25yeans | Mora than § yaans Tt ]
Trade payables ] a = 3 5
| Barrowings 3 . R N o N
Lease liabikizies - ° . J .
1Bther finaneial Hatities 0.20 038 P 2 2.20
Tetal 0.20 0.20 - - . 0.20
€. Market ik

Market visk & the nsk that the farr varue of future cash firws of 2 finznaal instrument whl Huctuate becsuse of changes in market prices, Market risk comprses thres types of rek: intarest rate sk, curnenty risk and other pnce risk, The above risks may affect the tompany's
scome and expenses, of the value of 1ts linancial irstruments, The Company’s exposure (o and management of these risks are explained below.




-
]

Tnterest zate rikk

[nlerest ate (ik +< tha risk thal tha faiF value or the fufure cash ftows of a fnancial mstiument wH futuate because of changes in market imterest rale dsks. The Company does Rot have any mntarest race nsk 5 it nas no varizbie rate borrawings s al any of the reponing date.

Currency risk

Faraign currency risk is the nisk that the Fair value or future cash flows of 2n axpesure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange fates. Thera are no material currency gk affertng the finaneial position of the Company as thera are no material Iransactions n currency

ather than functional currency of the Company.

Price rivic

The Company's exgesure 10 price risk anses from investments hetd and classified in the balance sheel atfair vaiue through profit ar loss. The Company does not have any price risk as al any of the reporting date,

Capital management

The Company’s capital includes 15sued equity cagital and aH 9thar aquky reserves attributable ta the aquity hoiders of the Company.

The Company 0byectives when managing Lapital are 1o:
- Safeguard their abikty [0 CONtinUE 35 1 going concern, 50 that they can cortinue to provide returns for
Maintain an sptimal captal structure to reduce the cast of capiral

and for ather and

or isjue new shines.

In order ta Mantan or 3t the ¢ apital structure, the Company may adjust the amaunt of divldands pa pital ta

The Comazny momtors capital Wsing a gearing 13ud, which s net debt divided by total equity. Net debt comprises of long term and short temm borrowings fess cash and bank bajances, eguty inclydes equiy share capital and reserves that ara managed o cagfal Tha gearag at

the end af the regerting period was a5 [oHowt

Particulars

‘Az at March 31, 2025 |

As at March 31, 2024

Total liabiities
Borrawengs {incfuding curment maturities)
Lease iabrlities

Luss : Cash and cash e balaacas other than aih and cash aquivalanty

(045}

“Adpusted nat dobt

t0 A5)

Total oquity

035

Nat debt %0 equity ratic.

138}

Net debt eeconciation

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2014

o .

Particalass

]

Cash and cash equivalents 27335 045
Non- currant borrawings Dingluding Curfent matunties) 924.19

Current borrowangs N

Lease nabmty (incuding current] 45501

Interast Fayable 2033 -
|Total 173347 0.45

Sagmantinformation

s per the regurements of nd AS 108 - Cperating Segments, the Company has evaiuated the reportable segments based on the internal reparting provided to the Cheef Opérating Decision Maker (CODM]

The COOM reviews the financlsl parformance of the Campany 23 a single business unit, and resource kacation decisions sre made 3t the averaH Company level. The operations of the Company are considered to ba within 2 single business segment, which 1 the prmary basis for

segment identification undar lng A% 108.
Accordingly, the Compary has cencluded that there are no reportable segments far the year ended [insert date].
Infarmation about geographical areas

Company’s operations are i Indla and therefore, no separata geograpucal manmation is declosed. AL the non-current agerating assats of the Company are located in India

Refated porty disclasures

Infarmation an related party transactions as required oy Ind AS 24 . Related Party Disclosurds are given below

Lot of refated partins:

Particulars

Entity Name

(1) Holding company TCL Comcept Limed

ALTRR Software Services Limited
ENK Clinic Private Limited
Brantford Limited

1d) Felow Subsidiary companies

() Kay managecial parsonnal

Directar Umesh Xumar Sahay
Directar Abhishek Narbaria
{iv] Entitlaz ovar which the KMP or their is abla EFC [1} Limitad
DC&T Glokal Private Limited
EFL Limited

1 Whitehids Interor Limited

Ek Design Ingustries Limited

EFL Estate Prvate Limited

EFC [meestment Advisors Private Limited
EFC Estate 710 Alpha Armate Limuted
EFCAIFLLP
££¢ Estate 56 Aipha Private
EFC Investment Manages Prvats Limited
EFC Estate Marisoft 23 #rivate Limited
E£FC Estate Wakadewadi Private Limited
£FC Estare Marisoft 14 Provate Limitad
Bighox Ventures Private Limited

EFC Prime

EF¢ Tech Space Private Limited

Monarch WorkSpace

Sprint Workspace

Forty Twa Ventures Limited

Limited (Formely Knawn s Degwekar [ndustrres Private Limited)

Transactions with the ralated parties are af fullows:

s
Whitehilhs Intarior Limited
Expanse -interior Design and other Spetislity Desian Service & Civll work
Loan Given

Brantford Limited

Expense - Brokearge

Expente - Leasing Asset Charges
Laan Given

Laan Repad

EFC () Limited
Expense - Rent

TCE Concapt Limited
Expense- Rent
Expense - Brol

T For tha yaar ended Masch 31 2025

For the year andicd March 31 2024

9,000 00
17484

463
251
43309
3cLas

120
1200
1402.71

47852 |
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< of Key ) af the Company:

[Papticutar

For the yrat ended 31 Maich 2025

For tha year ended 31 March 2624

‘Remunsration to Non - Exacutiva Directors
« Abhithek Narbaria
« Unesh Sahay

100 00
12000

Qutstanding balances with the ralated parfies are a3 follows:

Particulars
‘Trade payables - Currant
Whiteh i tateriar Limited
Branttord Limtad

EECO} mited

|TEC Cancept Limited

: Borowings - Non Currant
TCC Concept Limited

Othar financial assats - Currant
TCC Concept Limited

Loans - Non Cusent
Whitehllls Interior Limited
Brantford Lumitad

As 3t March 31, 2035 I

242.40
19

13.12

914 19

17484
17.2%

March 31, 2024

Emplayss banefit

Emplayae benafit expense of the Company mcludes vangus short term employes expenses, defined be

(2] Defined contribution pans

The Company makes pravident fund contributicns to defined benafit plan far quakfyng employess. Under the Sthemes, the Company s requred 1o Lo

., ENGRNLES

ibution on plans and nther iong-term empioyee benefits

@ a specified percentage of the payrod costs to fund the benetits, The cantributions payable to these gians by the

‘Particulars

For the year andad March 31 2025

Fot the year nded Warch 31 2020

Contripution te grovident fund
| Contributlon te athers

Total

(i Dafined Beraft Plans

The Company has unfunded defined benshit plan tor payment of gratuty to el elighie amployees calculated & specif|ed number af days of [ast drauwm ssiary depending upon the tenure of sewvice for each year of campleted service subject to minimum service of flve years
Intarest rataa risk: While cakulating the defined bensfit pbiigation a discount rate based an government bonds yields of matching renure 15 uzed fa arnve at tha present valae of future obligatians, if the bond yeld falls, the definad banefit obhgation wis tend to iIncreate and

Salary rhik: Higher than expetted increases in salary willincrease the defined beneft obigation
rhah:
Disclasuras for dafinad benaft plars basad on actuaral raports:

[i} Changea in the present vaki of the deflaed banafit cbilgation are as foliaws:

are required (o 3ssess e timing aad probatility of a payment taking plica. The effects of this decrement an the DBO depend Upon the cambinalion salary increase, discount rate, and vesting crera and therefare rot very straght

IParticulars

As at March 31, 2018

Dafined banefit obhgation at beginning of the year
Current sernce cosl

interest expense

| Rermansisament (gaimsiiosses

|Dafind benefit sbligatian atand of the year

(i) Amownt riigrised in of profit and loss and other Income:

Particubirs

Maizch 31 1015

Current sepvite cost
Past gervice cost
Inyerest expense an QAQ

382

Aseuit cognisad in satemant of profit and loss

3382

Remeasuramant of definad henefit liability:
Actuarial (gain)floss from changes in financal assumpnions

Actuarial (gain)floss due to expensnce on DBO

Remuasurament (painslilosses in other comprahinsiva incoma

(5t Nat Rabitivy racognisad in tha kalance sheat;

As at March 31, 2025

Asg at March 11, 1024

Defined benefit obligation

Defined lial [ ised in the balanca sheat

Classitied as non-cument
{Chassitied a8 current

n

[1B5)




{iv) Tha principla din foe the Company's plah are shown balew:

[Particutars

Ad at March 31, 2025 As at Mauch 31, 2024

et

Discount rate (in %}
Salary esealation {in %}
' Attrition rate (in %)

Mertality rates inchusive of pravision for disabilty

2.00%]
000%]
000%]
0 00%|

Age

Upto 50 ears
|Fram 31-40 years

U\hove“!nrs

The discount rale is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of Indla securities as at the Consokdated Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of obigations. The extimata of future salary ncreases consigered, takes INto account the inflation, seniarity, promatian,

{v) Sensitivity Analyss

Signilicant actuarial for the of thy

akion are discount rate, sxpectad silany ncrease and mortality. The sansitaity analyses balow have baen determned basted on raasonably passibie changes of the respective assumptions occurang akthe

Particulars T A5 ATMARTch 33, 2035 1 a1 March 31, 2028

i ! % change in 0BG Ducrease ot increase In DBG | % thange i DBO | Ducreaza o increasa in DB
imm of +100 basis ponts in rate of discounting 15 36987 1] 5
Effect of -100 basis paints In rate of discounting 1139% 43092 - °
Effect of +100 basis paints in rate of salary merease 10.88% 40,758 - -
Ieffect of -100 basis pornts m rate of satary ecrease 9 3% -35,752 - -
|Elt==t of +100 basis paints in 2Wtrtion rate 2,174 -12,101 - -
[Effect ot -100 basrs points in attrition rate 1515 13413 - | -
Mortality rate -0,08%) 296 - .

The above analysrs has been performed using P.u.C method. If an emptoyee’s service in later years will i2ad 00 3 matenally igher level of benefit than in garher years, these benefits are attrintad on a strught-line basis, The Iimitations are that in assessing the change ather

() Maturity profite of dafined banefit chlgation:

TExpacted cath flows {vafued on undiscounted basis)

As 31 Margh 31, 2025 4 Bearch 1, 2024
1

Year (I}

Year (I} 012 -
|Year {H1} %l -
|Year {Iv} 012 -
Year (v 0.13 -
25 year uiwards 074 -
Pay-auts Abgve Tea Years 702 ) -
[c) Compensated absances note

The Company provides for accurulation of compensated absences by tertan tategories of Its amployess. Thess employess ean carmy forward a portian of the unutillzed compensated absenc s and utlkise them in future periods or receive cash in iieu thereal as par the

Disclasures for detinrd benefit plans baasd on actuarial reporty:

{i) Charges in the presant vikse of the defined benofit abifgation are as follown:

Partkculars

A3 3t March 31, 2025 Ax at March 31, 2024

ID:ﬁned kenefit obligation at beginning of the year
LCurrent senace cost
[Interest expense

Remeasurement (gaiis)fosses

Defined bangfit tion at snd of the year

[#) Amount racognisad in statémunt of profit and losd and ethar comipra hamive income:

PartkiHars

Eor the year endsd March 312025 Fot the year anded March 31 2024

Curment serwce cost
Past service cost
linterest expansc on DBO

249 o

249 -

I.Imonn: Tacagnised In statemant of prafit and lass

Remaasuramunt of definad banafic abilky:
Actuarial (gzin)/toss from changesn finantial 2ssumptions

'_»'l:t_uaml {gain}flass due ts experience on 080
Rameasurement {guins)flosses In other comprehensive income

() Net lability recognised in the balance sheet:

lgarg:ugs

As at March 31, 2028 A at March 31, 2024

ined benefit obligation

2439

(X" B

Definad Rability recognitad in the balanca sheat
Classified as non-current
Classified as current

3 -
0.18 -

usad in for theCompary’s plan 2ra shawn below:

(i} The princighe

Particulary

As at March 31, 2025

As atMarzh 31, 2024

Discount rate (in %
Salary escatation {in %]
Attrition rate {In %)

Mortality rates Inciusive of provision for disability

108%)
pelld

O 0%

Aga

Mortafity Rate_

Upto 30 Years
From 3140 years
Above 44 years
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{vi Sensitivity Anakpsis

Sugnificant actuanal assumptions for the dererm:nation of the defirad obligation are discount rate, expectad saiary inerease and mortality. The semsitivity anzhyses heiow have been determmned based on ressanably passibla changes of the respactive assumplians accurting at the

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 Asat March 31, 2025
% thange in DBG Oecraase vr incraasa in BB in DB Oscreasd of increase in0BO |
Effect of 100 basis points in rate of discount-ng 3 -B.29% 20,664
Effact of -100 basis paints m rate of discaunting 9 70%
Effect of +100 basis g nts In rate of salary ineeease 8.93%
Effect of 100 iasss pounts in rate of salary decrease -7 81%|
Effect of +100 basis pamts in attritian rate -1.96%
Effact of -100 basis paints in attrition rate 2.25%
Momalyrate T B iosnj__ =T

The above analysis has been performed using P.U.C method. If an evployes’s service in later years will lead to 2 materiably hugher fevel of benefit than in earier ears, these bensfits are aitributed on astraight-line basis. The Lmitations are that in Fasersiing tha change other

{i} Matirity profite of defined benefit abigation;

TExpectad cash flaws [valusd on undiscounted Hash) As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2028

Year (] o1 -
Year 1] 0.12 o
Year 111} 143 -
Year (V] 0.06 -
[fear v 005

S year onwards 034

Piv-outs Above Ten Years 113 -
Sorporate sodal respansibility {Csh)

During the year, section 135 regarding Corparate Saeial R f the Act is not ta the company,

The Barfiament has apgraved the Code on Soclal Security, 2020 which may impact the contributien by the Company towards Provident fund and Gratuity. The effective date from which e Code and its provisions would be appicable is yer to be notitied and the ryles which

would prowide the detaifs based on which financial Impact can be determined are yat to be naufled after which
the financial vmaact can be sscertained, The Company wid complete 5 evaluation ang will give appropriate impact in the financial statements folewis & the Code becomeny efectie and the refated fules 1o determine the hnaneial impact bewig notified.

Additional disclosura with rspact to amandmants o Schedule I

3. The Company has 1ot baan declared as WL defavlter by any landers

b. The Company daes not have any cirarges or satisfaet on which s Yelto be registerad with ROC beyend the STatytory perlod
© The provision related to number of lavers as prescilbed under section 2483) of the Campanies Act read with Companies (Restriction an number of Layers} Rules, 2017 15 ot applicable to Company
@.The Company has not entered intg any schame of arrangement which ha; an accounting impact on the currant orpravious financlal year,

@ The Campany have nat any such Transaction which i< npt recarded inthe books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed 55 incame during the year in the tax assessments ynder the income Tax Act, 1961 fsuch a3, search or survey or any other relevant pravisions of
the kacome Tar Act, 1961)

F. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Curtency duning the cusrent financial year and any of the Previgus Unancial years

EThe Company does not have any Berami property, where any proceeding has been inmated o+ pending agamst the Company for hoksng any Benami property under the Benam: Transactions (Peahubition] Act, 1988 and rules made thersynder.

N The Company did not enter intg 2Ry ransaction with Lompanies struce off fram ROC records for the penad ended 31 March 7025 and 31 March 2024,

i.Funds have been advanced or iganad of invested {either fram borrowed Tunds or share Premium or any olher sowrces of kind of funds) by the COmpany Lo o/ in any other person{s) or entiy(les) inclagdng foreign entities {i ies} with the und ing, whether
recorded in wiit'ng or othenwse, thal the intermediary shaki, whether direatly or indiwettly land ar invest in othar persans or entities identified in any maaner whatsoever By 07 on behalf of the company [ultmate eneficianes) or provide any Buarantee, tecunity or the ke on
enall of the Utimate Bensticiaries

LHo funds have been receed by the Company from ar in Aany othar penonis) or entity|s) including foreign entities [fisnding parties) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenwise, that the tompany shad, whether directy or inditectly lend or invast in other
PEFONS Or entlt'es [dentitied in any manner whotsaever by or an bekall of the funding party {uktimate beneficianes) of aravide any guarantee, secunty ar the ke on behalf of tha Uitimate Beneliciaries,

k. Analytical Ratios

; = —_—
{rumerstor {Denominater $1March 7025 31 March 2623 | % of Varlance Variance remark j
- —_— — — ——— -
Curent avsets Current liabil 1130 -3 = |
Toral delit Shareholders equity 005 ' o |
Debt servce coverage ratio {in times] Earnings far Debt Debt services | Interest and
Serviees (it atter  lease payments + Panciple
tax +0ey aaan répayments
: prec . D2y i NA NA NA |
+Finance cost ioecft on
sle of progerty plan |
i and equipment)
Ratura on equity ratio fin % Net Profit for e yesr JAverage sharehalders equiy 003 o e thart are no base year comparables |
Cost of gnods i [Average mventary L] D avallable, and hance the variance are mory |

Ravenue from iperation] Avarage trade recanabies

Oth!rexgnm Averzje trade payaples o15 ==
B =

than 15% across the rapartable mtcs

M=t capilal turmover ratio Revenua from king capita] (Current assats - =
Net profit ratio [in %) Net Prafit far the year  [Hevenue from aperatians - - P |
Return an capital employed (in %) Profitbefaretacand  [Capital emproyed (Tangitle 0.02 i |

firngg cost L% h + Tor = e
TReturn on imvestment fin %) Incame generaisd from |Average Imvestment funds in |
Lreasury invastments treasury 1avestment) Na N& nA |

L

Nate:
{a] In respect of aforementisned catias thera s o sgnibiean

Zirge |15%or more) it £ 2024-25 in compansan g

Forind an hehaif of the Baard of Biractors
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